
Question # RFP Reference Question Response Date Posted 

1

Govt.’s Wed 11/20/2013 9:03 
AM E-mail; Subject: Fort Irwin 
Exhibit A TE 1-001 FICA 
Estimated Productive Workload 
Data and associated attachment; 
“productive hrs per FTE” @ 
1856. Attachment 0008.

Considering the 2nd para. – “It is important to note that the … 
“ of that same E-mail, how will offers be evaluated from a Cost 
Realism Analysis perspective from firms that  proposed 
productive hours per FTE for their proposed CBA workforce 
greater than 1856?   

The hours as proposed will be evaluated to determine 
whether the estimated proposed cost elements are 
realistic for the work to be performed; reflect a clear 
understanding of the requirements and are consistent 
with the unique methods of performance and materials 
described in the offeror's technical proposal.

12/13/2013

2

Govt.’s Wed 11/20/2013 9:03 
AM E-mail; Subject: Fort Irwin 
Exhibit A TE 1-001 FICA 
Estimated Productive Workload 
Data and associated attachment; 
“productive hrs per FTE” @ 
1856. Attachment 0008.

Would the Govt. consider normalizing the productive hours 
per FTE for CBA-covered employees?  This is especially true 
considering offerors (except for the incumbent) are unaware 
of Paid-Time-Off (PTO) liability, e.g., vacation associated 
w/the incumbent CBA Workforce.  This is also especially true 
considering the applicability of FAR 52.222-17 
NONDISPLACEMENT OF QUALIFIED WORKERS.  

No

12/13/2013

3

Slide 6, Ft Irwin CA Site Visit 
Briefing Slides

This slide depicts a, "GSA Service Center" under the 
Maintenance Division.  Is there workload associated with that 
activity? 

Yes, please reference Technical Exhibit E TE 5-001-M 
Maintenance Workload Data and Density List.  The GSA 
Service Center workload is included in the non-tactical 
workload data within Exhibit E.  12/13/2013

4

Slide 8, Ft Irwin CA Site Visit 
Briefing Slides

This slide lists a, "Certified GSA Repair Center" under 
maintenance missions.  Is there workload associated with this 
mission?

Yes, please reference Technical Exhibit E TE 5-001-M 
Maintenance Workload Data and Density List.  The GSA 
Service Center workload is included in the non-tactical 
workload data within Exhibit E.  12/13/2013

5

RFP W52P1J-12-R-0116, Page 
4, INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
ASSIST

The RFP states: "The required information regarding these 
two (2) individuals must be submitted with the Offerors 
proposal and included in the cover letter." Does the 
Government want Offerors to submit a Cover Letter in addition 
to the required documents outlined in Section L? If the 
Government does want a separate Cover Letter to be 
additionally uploaded to the ASFI website, what naming 

Offerors may submit cover letters in accordance with 
Section L but are not required to submit cover letters.  
Cover letters should not be submitted separately but 
submitted with the Volume to which the cover letter 
applies.  Reference Section L, Paragraph L.5.1.5 for 
ASSIST points of contract submittal instructions including 
naming convention.  12/13/2013



Question # RFP Reference Question Response Date Posted 

6

RFP W52P1J-12-R-0116, Page 
54, Para L.5.3.1.2 

The RFP states: "The Offeror shall provide a consent letter for 
each major subcontractor and teammate performing 20% or 
more of the total value of the contract using the Letter of 
Consent template provided in Attachment 0004." If a Prime 
contractor is bidding without any subcontractors, do they still 
need to submit the Letter of Consent in Attachment 0004? Is a 
written document stating the Offeror does not have any 
subcontractors in lieu of Attachment 0004 sufficient to meet 
this requirement?

Offerors not proposing a major subcontractor or a 
teammate performing 20% or more of the total value of 
the contract do not need to submit Attachment 0004, 
Letter of Consent. 12/13/2013

7

Solicitation, Pages 50-60, L.5

Section L.5 of the solicitation discusses information that is to 
be submitted with our response.  In reviewing the 
requirements, we did not see anywhere to include items such 
as cover letters, signed title pages, or tables of contents (with 
the exception of the price volume).  Will the government 
please clarify if additional items such as those named above 
will be accepted with the submission of each of our volumes?  
If yes, should they follow the same naming convention (i.e. the 
cover letter could be titled Company_Vol_1_Cover_Letter)?

Reference Section L.4.(9) which states "Page limits 
exclude cover page; table of contents; glossary and 
acronyms)."  These documents are not evaluated. These 
items should not be submitted separately rather they 
should be submitted with the Volume to which they apply 
utilizing the naming convention identified in Section L.   12/13/2013

8

Solicitation, Page 59-60, 
L.5.4.2.7.5

Sections L.5.4.2.7.5(a) - L.5.4.2.7.5(d) of the solicitation 
requires information to be submitted that may be better served 
in a word or PDF file rather than an excel file (i.e. current 
wage surveys as supporting data for direct labor rates).  
Would the government consider changing the file format for 
this section to inlcude MS Word and PDF in addition to MS 
Excel?

Reference Amendment 0001, Section L Paragraphs 
L.5.4.2.7.5 (a) and (b)-(d).  For Section L, Paragraph 
L.5.4.2.7.5 (a):  submitted information may be submitted 
in Microsoft Word, Adobe or Microsoft EXCEL format.  
For Section L, Paragraphs L.5.4.2.7.5 (b) - (d): submitted 
information should include the calculations for how the 
indirect rates were determined; therefore, the indirect 
rate information should be in Microsoft EXCEL as related 
to these calculations.  Additional narrative explanation in 
support of how indirect rates are developed could be in 
Microsoft Word or Adobe format.  12/13/2013



Question # RFP Reference Question Response Date Posted 

9

Solicitation, Page 52, L.5.1.10

Section L.5.1.10 of the solicitation requires offerors to submit 
a copy of their 8a certification letter.  There was no naming 
convention, file format, or page limit provided for this 
requirement.  Will the govermnet please provide the naming 
convention, file format, and page limit for this requirement?

Reference Amendment 0001, Section L Pargraph 
L.5.1.10:  L.5.1.10 (a) Naming Convention:  Offerors 
Name_Vol 1_8(a) certification letter L.5.1.10 (b) Adobe 
or MS Word L.5.1.10 (c ) Page limit:  none 12/13/2013

10

Govt.’s Wed 11/20/2013 9:03 
AM E-mail; Subject: Fort Irwin 
Exhibit A TE 1-001 FICA 
Estimated Productive Workload 
Data and associated attachment; 
“productive hrs per FTE” @ 
1856. Solicitation Sections L & 
M, p. 48-69.; Sol. Sect. L.5.2.1.4, 
p. 53.

Will Offerors be in compliance with Sections L&M (e.g., Att. 
0002, et al.) if they propose productive hours per FTE for their 
proposed CBA workforce greater than 1856?

The hours as proposed will be evaluated to determine 
whether the estimated proposed cost elements are 
realistic for the work to be performed; reflect a clear 
understanding of the requirements and are consistent 
with the unique methods of performance and materials 
described in the offeror's technical proposal.

12/13/2013

11

RFP, Pages 59-60, L.5.4.2.7.5

Paragraph L.5.4.2.7.5(d)(ii) states that the file format for rate data 
requested in paragraphs L.5.4.2.7.5(a) through L.5.4.2.7.5(d) shall 
be MS Excel. However, the Government requires detailed 
descriptions for several items, such as the application of proposed 
indirect rates on direct costs. Is it acceptable for Offeror's to submit 
explanations accompanying the MS Excel rate data in MS Word 
format?

Reference Amendment 0001, Section L Paragraphs 
L.5.4.2.7.5 (a) and (b)-(d).  For Section L, Paragraph 
L.5.4.2.7.5 (a):  submitted information may be submitted 
in Microsoft Word, Adobe or Microsoft EXCEL format.  
For Section L, Paragraphs L.5.4.2.7.5 (b) - (d): submitted 
information should include the calculations for how the 
indirect rates were determined; therefore, the indirect 
rate information should be in Microsoft EXCEL as related 
to these calculations.  Additional narrative explanation in 
support of how indirect rates are developed could be in 
Microsoft Word or Adobe format.  12/13/2013

12
RFP, Page 50, L.4.3(5)

Paragraph L.4.1.1 requires that certain information be featured on 
each page in a header and/or footer. May header/footer type be 
smaller than 12-point? 

Yes, in accordance with Section L.4.3(5) of Amendment 
0001, text can be no smaller than 8-point. 12/13/2013

13 RFP, Page 49, L.4 Are Covers specifically required for any documents or is this 
left to the Offeror's discretion? 

No, cover letters are not required and are at the 
discretion of the offeror. 12/13/2013



Question # RFP Reference Question Response Date Posted 

14

W52P1J12R0116_0000, pg #59, 
L.5.4.2.7.5(a) 

The Government has provided no anticipated start dates or 
performance dates with this RFP.  As the start date can have 
a profound impact on the CBA pay rates utilized, will the 
Government provide expected dates for pricing purposes 
only?  If offerors use different start dates it can cause as 
much as a 3% difference per year in the pricing model due to 
escalation of the CBA positions between years. Without this 
guidance - offerors will not be on a level playing field. Contract award is projected 4th quarter FY14 12/13/2013

15

Attach 0001, PWS, Page 75 of 
133, Para 5.3.4 thru 5.3.4.2

Will the Government provide the associated workload for 
Maintenance Support Teams?  Or will this be added cost 
when required by the Government?

There is no direct historical workload data as PWS 
Paragraphs 5.3.4, 5.3.4.1 and 5.3.4.2 are for 
contingency purposes only and do not occur on a regular 
basis. Amendment 0001 revises PWS Paragraph to 
reflect the same. 12/13/2013

16

Attach 0001, PWS, Page 108 of 
133, Para 5.23 and 5.23.1

Will the Government provide the associated workload for Unit  
Movements as Exhibit A TE 1-001 only has hours for Personal 
Property Shipping Office?  Or will this be added cost when 
required by the Government?

Amendment 0001 revises PWS Paragraph  5.23 
changed 5.23 to RESERVED.  This was originally meant 
for unit movement and equipment and is not required for 
this location. 12/13/2013

17

Attach 0001, PWS, Page 108 of 
133, Para 5.25 thru 5.23.4

Will the Government provide the associated workload for 
Passenger Movements as Exhibit A TE 1-001 only has hours 
for Personal Property Shipping Office?  Or will this be added 
cost when required by the Government?

Please refer to Tech Exhibit 5-007-T Personal Property 
average yearly workload data for more detailed workload 
information. 12/13/2013

18

Attach 0001, PWS, Page 118 of 
133, Para 5.28 Motor Pool 
Operations

Since there is no mention of 2nd or 3rd shift support in Motor 
Pool Operations paragraphs and only briefly mention on call 
support in 5.28.1, can we assume there is only day shift 
support here?

Yes, there is only one shift.   The shift starts at 0700 
local time. 12/13/2013

19

Attach 1, PWS, Page 118 & 119 
of 133, PRS for Passenger 
Movements

There are four PRS requirements for the contractor to meet  
but there is no workload data provided in Exhibit A TE 1001.  
Will the Government provide the workload data in an updated 
Exhibit A TE 1-001 for the contractor to propose against?

Please refer to updated Exhibit A TE 1-001 FICA 
Estimated Productive Workload Data, Personal Property 
Shipping Office which identifies Tech Exhibit 5-007-T 
Personal Property Average Yearly Workload Data which 
provides a more detailed workload information. 12/13/2013
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20

Attach 0001, PWS, Page 109 of 
133, PRS for Unit Movements

There is no  "- RESERVED" here.  Are there any PRS 
requirements for Unit Movements or not?  If so, will the 
Government provide workload for in Exhibit A TE 1-001 for the 
contractor to propose against?

Amendment 0001 changes the PRS for Unit Movements 
to Reserved.  This was originally meant for unit 
movement and equipment and is not required for this 
location. 12/13/2013

21
Attach 0001, Section C – 4 Page 
1, Para 4.1.1 Individual Tools

Are these individual tools cost reimbursable items covered by 
the Other Direct Costs (ODCs) CLIN?

No.   The government will not provide funding for the 
purpose of individual tools. 12/13/2013

22
Attach 0001, Section C – 2 Page 
xxiv. Para 1.12 ODC

Leased equipment: Do ODCs include leased vehicles if they 
are not a passenger car? Yes after receipt of government approval.  12/13/2013

23

PWS, Section C - 5 Page 1, 
Paragraph 5.1.1.

The PWS states:" The primary mission of the IMD is to 
provide above brigade level, field and limited sustainment 
level maintenance support to Fort Irwin tactical units…" 
According to the site visit, maintenance on tactical units will 
not be a part of this contract. Will the Government clarify to 
what the requirements will be concerning the maintenance 
and operation of tactical units?

Maintenance of tactical vehicles is a requirement of this 
contract.  Please reference Ft. Irwin CA Site Visit Briefing 
Slide 8, PWS Section 5.1.1 and Technical Exhibit E TE-5-
001-M for requirements.  

12/13/2013

24

PWS, Section C - 5 Page 2, 
Paragraph 5.2.1.

The PWS states: "The contractor shall test, inspect, repair, 
service, maintain, transport, and process / de-process 
commercial or tactical equipment listed in Technical Exhibit 
(TE) 5-001, in accordance with the maintenance request and 
approval process." Based on Site Visit observations, this  
requirement does not include tactical wheeled vehicles. Can 
the Government confirm or clarify if Offerors are required to 
test, inspect, repair, service, maintain, transport, and process / 
de-process tactical wheeled vehicles under this contract?

Maintenance of tactical vehicles is a requirement of this 
contract.  Please reference Ft. Irwin CA Site Visit Briefing 
Slide 8, PWS Section 5.2.1 and Technical Exhibit E TE-5-
001-M for requirements.  

12/13/2013

25

Site Visit Central Issue Facility 
(Bldg. 342 & 352) COR Herman 
Carey & Attachment 1 FICA 
PWS Section C – 5 Page 20, 
Paragraph 5.12.1.2

Are there any specific dates or plans for the relocation of the 
CIF?

The Government does not have any more specifics on 
the timeframe identified in PWS Paragraph 5.12.1.2.

12/13/2013
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26

Site Visit Central Issue Facility 
(Bldg. 342 & 352) COR Herman 
Carey & Attachment 1 FICA 
PWS Section C – 5 Page 20, 
Paragraph 5.12.1.2

Can the Government perform that the relcation will fall under 
the responsibility of the contractor?

In accordance with PWS Paragraph 5.12.1.2, the 
contractor will be responsible for moving all 
organizational clothing and individual equipment (OCIE) 
within five business days.  12/13/2013

27

Site Visit Central Issue Facility 
(Bldg. 342 & 352) COR Herman 
Carey & Attachment 1 FICA 
PWS Section C – 5 Page 20, 
Paragraph 5.12.1.2

Has a budget been set aside for the relocation project? No

12/13/2013

28

Site Visit Central Issue Facility 
(Bldg. 342 & 352) COR Herman 
Carey & Attachment 1 FICA 
PWS Section C – 5 Page 20, 
Paragraph 5.12.1.2

Should the Offeror include pricing for this relocation in any 
part of the proposal?

The Offeror is not to submit pricing for the Central Issue 
Facility (CIF) relocation referenced in PWS Paragraph 
5.12.1.2 as part of its cost proposal. After Contract 
award, when the relocation is scheduled to occur, the 
PCO/COR will notify the winning Offeror to submit a cost 
proposal for the relocation (including impact statements 
regarding mission delays or schedule slippages). 12/13/2013

29

Attachment 1 FICA PWSSection 
C – 5 Page 5, Paragraph 5.5 & 
Exhibit A & Exhibit E

PWS paragraph 5.5 requires that the contractor provide 
Machinist support, tire repair support, vehicle body repair and 
equipment painting however the workload provided in exhibit 
A  and E do not provide a workload. Does the Government 
want the contractor to provide the technical skill sets to fulfill 
the PWS requirements even though a workload is not 
provided? Or is this part of the Shop W workload?

Reference Amendment 0001 PWS Paragraph 5.5.1 
which revises the last sentence to read "Tasks include 
but are not limited to welding, machining, fabrication and 
body repair."  All work performed in accordance PWS 
Paragraph 5.5.1 is located in Shop W.  

12/13/2013

30

PWS Section C-5, Page 22, 
Para 5.17.10 

This paragraph states, "The Contractor shall pick up materials 
and repair parts at those vendor locations that do not deliver 
to Fort Irwin."  If requisitions are passed through the SSA, this 
function should reside there.  Please clarify.

It is anticipated that most requisitions will be done 
through the Standard Army Retail Supply System 
(SARSS) which will be delivered to the Supply Support 
Activities.  When required, if items are purchased locally 
outside of SARSS, the contractor could be responsible 
for picking up materials and repair parts from local 
vendors. 12/13/2013
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31

PWS Section C-5, Page 22, 
Para 5.17.10; Exhibit G TE 5-
005-S-HAZMAT Information and 
Workload 

This paragraph states, "The Contractor shall pick up materials 
and repair parts at those vendor locations that do not deliver 
to Fort Irwin."  There is no workload associated with this task 
listed within, "Exhibit G TE 5-005-S-HAZMAT Information and 
workload."  Will the gov't provide some workload data?

Reference Amendment 0001, PWS Paragraph 5.17.10 
which is revised to state "The Contractor shall pick up 
materials at those vendor locations that do not deliver to 
Fort Irwin."  The Government does not have historical 
data for the number times the Contractor would be 
required to pick up materials to support the HAZMAT 
requirements.   It is estimated that roughly 30% of the 
materials needed would require the contractor to pick up 
from local vendors.  Refer to TE 1-001 FICA Estimated 
Productive Workload Data for further information. 12/13/2013

32

PWS, pg.1, 5.1.3.1

On the site visit the contractors were shown building 886, DOL 
Maintenance Division, this PWS paragraph references other 
locations.  Can the Government provide any locations that are 
currently being manned by the incumbents in addition to BLD. 
886?

At the present time, tasks associated with PWS 
Paragraph 5.1.3.1, Support Locations,  are being 
performed solely in Building 886, DOL Maintenance 
Division.  It is anticipated the majority of work performed 
under this contract will also be performed in Building 
886; however, the Contractor must have the capability to 
perform work at all sites identified in PWS Paragraph 
5.1.3.1 Support Locations. 12/13/2013

33

PWS, pg.1, 5.1.3.1

The workload data suggests that there is work being 
performed on track vehicles.  The facility shown during the site 
visit did not look to be large enough to facilitate tracked 
vehicles.  Where is the maintenance on track vehicles 
performed at?

The DOL Maintenance BLDG 886 is equipped to handle 
the M113A1/A2/A3 series vehicles. M1's, Bradley's, and 
M88A1 and Hercules Recovery vehicles will have to be 
worked on in Unit Motor Pools.

12/13/2013

34

PWS, Pg.3, 5.3.4
This paragraph indicates the existence of Maintenance 
Support Teams.  How many simultaneous support missions 
are currently accounted for in the workload data provided?

There is no direct historical workload data as PWS 
Paragraphs 5.3.4, 5.3.4.1 and 5.3.4.2 are for 
contingency purposes only and do not occur on a regular 
basis. Amendment 0001 revises PWS Paragraph to 
reflect the same. 12/13/2013
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35

PWS Section C-5 Maintenance 
Performance Requirement 
Summary (PRS), paragraph 
5.3.4 page 13, and RFP 
Attachment 0002 Staffing Labor 
Mix

Both of these documents refer to a CBA (Collective 
Bargaining Agreement), but no CBAs were provided with the 
RFP.  Will the Government provide all CBAs that pertain to 
work under this solicitation?

The Collective Bargaining Agreements are not 
releaseable to the public and therefore were emailed to 
the Point of Contract listed in your Basic Ordering 
Agreement (BOA) Attachment 0003.  Reference the 
updated Attachments 0008  and 0014 sent as part of 
Amendment 0001 12/13/2013

36

PWS, C-5 Page 2, Para. 5.2.1 The reference indicates that Technical Exhibit (TE) 5-001 
contains a list of commercial and tactical equipment that 
contractor will test, inspect, repair, service, etc., but the exhibit 
was not included with the RFP.  Would you please provide TE 
5-001?

This information is not releasable to the public and was 
emailed to the Point of Contract listed in your Basic 
Ordering Agreeement (BOA) Attachment 0003.  12/13/2013

37

PWS, C-5 Page 2, Para. 5.2 A Technical Exhibit for Maintenance Workload Data is not 
mentioned in Para. 5.2 nor is it one of the exhibits provided 
with the RFP.  Would you verify that the Maintenance 
Workload Data technical exhibit was omitted from the PWS or 
if the missing Technical Exhibit (TE) 5-001 contains 
maintenance workload data, in addition to the equipment list?

TE 5-001 is not releasable to the public and was emailed 
to the Point of Contract listed in your Basic Ordering 
Agreement (BOA) Attachment 0003.  Reference 
Amendment 0001, PWS, TE 5-001 is referenced in 
Paragraph 5.2.1 and 5.3.2 of the PWS.  Additional 
Maintenance Workload data can be found in Paragraph 
1.2.5 of the PWS 12/13/2013

38

Attachment 0001, PWS; Section 
C-2, Page iv; para 1.3.2.1

Exhibit R, CDRLs PM, PM-26

Para 1.3.2.1 of the PWS states, "The contractor shall 
determine which positions are key to the effort in addition to 
those indicated below in paragraphs 1.3.2.1.2, 1.3.2.1.3, and 
1.3.2.1.4, and shall provide the definitive listing of all its key 
personnel, with resumes, to the contracting officer upon 
award." However, the referenced CDRL, PM-26, Key Position 
Resumes, states initial resumes must be submitted to the 
Government not later than 10 days after start of transition. 
Could the Government please clarify when it would like the 
definitive listing of key personnel and when it would like the 
initial resumes for key positions?

PWS para changed to read: "The contractor shall 
determine which positions are key to the effort in addition 
to those indicated below in paragraphs 1.3.2.1.2, 
1.3.2.1.3, and 1.3.2.1.4, and shall provide the definitive 
listing of all its key personnel, with resumes, to the 
contracting officer as specified in CDRL PM-26. " 

12/13/2013
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39

Attachment 0001, PWS; Section 
C-2, Page x; para 1.4.3

Exhibit R, CDRLs PM, PM-06

Para 1.4.3 states, "Additionally, the contractor shall provide a 
management and supervisors list not later than 30 calendar 
days after full operating capability (FOC)." However, the 
referenced CDRL, PM-06, states, for the same paragraph, 
that the contractor shall identify in writing on or before contract 
performance start date the managers and supervisors and 
their alternates..."  Could the Government please clarify when 
it would like PM-06 submitted?

CDRL PM-06 and PWS paragraph both changed to read 
the Manager and supervisor list is to be provided not 
later than 30 calendar days after notice to proceed (NTP) 
date.  

12/13/2013

40

Attachment 0001, PWS; Section 
C-2, Page xii; para 1.5.1

Exhibit R, CDRLs PM, PM-08

Para 1.5.1 states, "The contractor shall submit its security 
plans (including the areas referenced above) to the DOL 
Security Manager and COR no later than 30 calendar days 
after award for government approval." However, the 
referenced CDRL, PM-08, Security & Antiterrorism Plan, 
states the initial copy will be submitted 30 calendar days after 
notice to proceed date. Could the Government please clarify 
the submission date for PM-08?

PWS para changed to read: "the contractor shall submit 
its security plans (including the areas referenced above) 
to the DOL Security Manager and COR no later than 30 
calendar days after notice to proceed for government 
approval." 

12/13/2013

41

Attachment 0001, PWS; Section 
C-2, Page xvii; para 1.6.1

Exhibit R, CDRLs PM, PM-10

Para 1.6.1 states, "The contractor shall provide the complete 
Quality Control Plan no later than 30 calendar days after start 
of work for Government review and approval."  However, the 
referenced CDRL, PM-10, Quality Control Plan, states initial 
submission of the draft Quality Control Plan for Government 
review and approval as 30 calendar days after award date. 
Could the government please clarify the initial submission 
date of PM-10?

CDRL PM-10 changed to read: "Block 12 – The 
Contractor shall provide NLT 30 calendar days after 
notice to proceed. The Government will review and either 
provide comments or approve the draft copy within 15 
days. The Contractor shall resubmit no later than (NLT) 
15 days after receipt of Government comments, with 
changes in response to those comments."  PWS para 
also changed to reference the CDRL PM-10 for 
suspense date. 12/13/2013

42

Exhibit R, CDRLs PM, PM-21 PM-21 states the date of first submission as, "30 days after 
contract." Could the Government please clarify whether this is 
30 days after contract award or contract start?

CDRL PM-21 has been changed to identify "NLT 30 days 
after notice to proceed". 

12/13/2013

43

Attach 0008 and Attach 0014 Is the Maintenance Division the only area currently under the 
CBA?  Is it a correct assumption that Supply and Services and 
Transportation is under the SCA Wage Determination?

Reference Amendment 0001, Section A, CBA 
Clarification 12/13/2013
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44

Attach 0014, Page 15, Para 15.8 According to 15.8, the company shall pay each employee the 
difference between the negotiated FBR and the actual costs 
of benefits annually. Does this mean the maximum fringe 
benefits rate is $6.10 per hour including group health 
insurance, life insurance, accidental death and 
dismemberment insurance, paid personal time, military duty, 
jury duty pay, bereavement leave pay and retirement benefit 
plan? For instance, a CBA labor worked one full year, the total 
fringe benefits amount is  $12,688.00 ($6.10*2080)

Amendment 0001 revises Attachment 0014 to update 
the CBA effective August 25, 2012 to August 30, 2015 to 
include current Fringe Benefit Rates in Article 15.08.  12/13/2013

45

Attachment 0008 - FICA LSSC 
CBA

Union seniority impacts pricing efforts such as Fringe Benefits. 
In order to submit accurate pricing, will the Government 
provide the current seniority list for each Union?

No.  The Government cannot provide a seniority roster of 
current employees.  12/13/2013

46
Attachment  0008, Page 64, 
Para 30.10.01

Are premiums in the table under 30.10.01 per month or per 
year? They are per month. 12/13/2013

47

Attach 0001 PWS Section A, d) There is no anticipated start date information. CBA rates are 
affected by a contract start date which will affect our final 
pricing submission. Will the Government provide an 
anticipated start date? Contract award is projected 4th quarter FY14 12/13/2013

48
Attachment  0008 & 0014 Will the Government provide a seniority list per labor category 

for each of the CBAs?
No.  The Government cannot provide a seniority roster of 
current employees.  12/13/2013

49

Attachment 0008, Page 28, 
15.09.00 and 15.10.00

Sections 15.09.00 and 15.10.00 of the Teamsters CBA detail 
additional floating holiday requirements for employees based 
on their level of senioriy.  Will the government please provide 
a seniority roster for this union so that the cost of this holiday 
can be captured accurately?

No.  The Government cannot provide a seniority roster of 
current employees.  12/13/2013

50

Attachment 0008, Page 28, 
15.11.00

Section 15.11.00 of the Teamsters CBA details longevity days 
for employees based on seniority.  Will the government please 
provide a senirority roster for this union so that the cost of the 
longevity days can be captured accurately?

No.  The Government cannot provide a seniority roster of 
current employees.  12/13/2013

51

Attachment 0008, Page 34, 
18.01.00

Section 18.01.00 of the Teamsters CBA details personal leave 
which is accrued based on length of employment.  Will the 
government please provide a seniroity roster for this union so 
that the cost of the personal leave can be captured 

No.  The Government cannot provide a seniority roster of 
current employees.  12/13/2013
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Attachment 0008, Page 64-65, 
31.10.01

Section 31.10.01 of the Teamsters CBA lists the cost of group 
insurance.  The insurance cost increased on February 1st 
each year.  Will the government please provide an estimated 
start date for this contract so that the cost of the insurance 
can be captured accurately. Contract award is projected 4th quarter FY14 12/13/2013

53

Attachment 0008, Page 75-77, 
Appendix A

Appendix A of the Teamsters CBA lists wage rates that are 
effective through 2017.  Will the government please provide 
an estimated start date for the contract so that the wage rates 
can be price accurately? Contract award is projected 4th quarter FY14 12/13/2013

54

Attachment 0008, Page 75-77, 
Appendix A

Appendix A of the Teamsters CBA lists wage rates that are 
effective through 2017.  Would the government please clarify 
if wages should be priced for each year as listed in the CBA or 
flatlined at the Base Year rate knowing that price adjustments 
would be submitted for each option year?

Contract award is projected in the 4th quarter of 2014.  
Given this projected award date, if the Government were 
to exercise all the one year options, the ultimate contract 
completion date would be the 4th quarter 2019.  For 
years of performance covered by an applicable CBA, 
Offerors shall use the rates identified in the CBA.  If a 
CBA expires prior to 4th quarter 2019, the Offeror shall 
use a "bogie" esclation rate of 3% for each one year 
period not covered under the applicable CBA. 12/13/2013

55

Attachment 0014, Page 28, 
Appendix A

Appendix A of the IAMAW CBA lists wage rates that are 
effective through 2014.  ill the government please provide an 
estimated start date for the contract so that the wage rates 
can be price accurately? Contract award is projected 4th quarter FY14 12/13/2013

56

Attachment 0014, Page 15, 
Article 15.8

Article 15.8 of the IAMAW CBA lists the "current" fringe 
benefit rate as $6.10 per hour with blanks for the rates 
effective 1/1/13, 1/1/14, and 1/1/15.  Has there been a 
revision to the CBA to provide updated fringe benefit rates 
effective 1/1/13, 1/1/14, or 1/1/15?

Amendment 0001 revises Attachment 0014 to update 
the CBA effective August 25, 2012 to August 30, 2015.  12/13/2013

57

Attachment 8 Northrop Grumman is not listed as an incumbent on this work.  
Is this attachment to be used as a consideration for our 
proposal?  Thanks!

Yes, this CBA is applicable.  Reference Amendment 
0001, Section A, CBA Clarification 12/13/2013



Question # RFP Reference Question Response Date Posted 

58

Exhibit E TE 5-001-M-
Maintenance Workload Data and 
Density

This Technical Exhibit provides an extensive amount of 
anticipated workload in the support of tactical units, to include 
work at Shop W and Shop T. According to the Site Visit 
disucssion, it was conveyed that Shop W and Shop T would 
not be a part of this contract. Will the Government clarify if this 
anticipated annual workload with the Technical Exhibit is 
accurate? Will the Government provide the correct anticipated 
workload data for the changed PWS requirements?

The Technical Exhibit E TE5-001-M provides the correct 
workload data to support the tactical units and accurately 
includes workload data for Shops T and Shop W.  12/13/2013

59

Exhibit G TE-5-005-S-HAZMAT 
Information and Workload

Based on  Site Visit observations, will the Government confirm 
the HAZMAT workload data in this Technical Exhibit is 
accurate?

Technical Exhibit G TE-5-005-S-HAZMAT Information 
and Workload accurately reflects historical workload.  
The intensity of the workload fluctuates based on unit's 
training rotations.  12/13/2013

60

Attachment 0008 FICA LSSC 
CBA

The CBA you have in Attachment 0008 is for Northrup 
Grumman and the Teamsters, however I know there are two 
other CBAs in place with LMR for CIF and TMP and with UCG 
for Supply Support Activity, will the government provide the 
appropriate CBA for the appropriate contractors as separate 
documents and not as a perceived single CBA, unless all 
contractors on Ft Irwin are working for Northrup Grumman as 
the sole contactor. Please clarify with appropriate CBAs.

Reference Amendment 0001, Section A, CBA 
Clarification 12/13/2013

61

Attachment 0008 FICA LSSC 
CBA

The CBA you have in Attachment 0008 is for Northrup 
Grumman and the Teamsters, however I know there are two 
other CBAs in place with LMR for CIF and TMP and with UCG 
for Supply Support Activity, will the government provide the 
appropriate CBA for the appropriate contractors as separate 
documents and not as a perceived single CBA, unless all 
contractors on Ft Irwin are working for Northrup Grumman as 
the sole contactor. Please clarify with appropriate CBAs.

Reference Amendment 0001, Section A, CBA 
Clarification.  Informatio in the Attachment 0008 CBA not 
applicable to requirements in the PWS has been 
removed. 12/13/2013

62

Attachment 0008 - FICA LSSC 
CBA & Attachmen 0014 - DOL 
Maintenance CBA

The provided CBAs have a number samilar job categories, 
Please provide the job descriptions that pertain to each CBA 
so the offeror can propose the propor labor categories.

Reference Amendment 0001, Section A, CBA 
Clarification 12/13/2013
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Attachment 0008 - FICA LSSC 
CBA & Attachmen 0014 - DOL 
Maintenance CBA

Please clarify the CBA that applies to each functional area?  
Reference Amendment 0001, Section A, CBA 
Clarification 12/13/2013

64

Attachment 0002-Staffing/Labor 
Mix

Attachment 0002 is missing from the solicitation package, will 
the government please provide Attachment 0002?

This Attachment can be obtained from the solicitation 
posting on ASFI at the following URL: 
https://acquisition.army.mil/asfi/solicitation_view.cfm?pso
licitationnbr=W52P1J12R0116 12/13/2013

65

Attachment 0005-Cost/Price 
Matrix

Attachment 0005 is missing from the solicitation package, will 
the government please provide Attachment 0005?

This Attachment can be obtained from the solicitation 
posting on ASFI at the following URL: 
https://acquisition.army.mil/asfi/solicitation_view.cfm?pso
licitationnbr=W52P1J12R0116 12/13/2013

66

Exhibit A TE 1-001 FICA 
Estimated Productive Workload 
Data

Please clarify if the hours listed for the Maintenance section 
includes the hours for Production Control, Supply and Quality 
Control shops? 

The maintenance information contained in TE 1-001 
provides the minimum productive hours for the 
requirements identified in Paragraphs 5.1 through 5.8 of 
the PWS.  All productive areas are represented; 
however, these hours may or may not include all areas / 
hours required to properly conduct the effort. 12/13/2013

67

Exhibit R, CDRLs PM, PM-22 PM-22, Contractor's Purchasing System, states the date of 
first submission as, "Draft, 30 calendar days prior to FOC 
date." Could the Government please clarify that this means on 
the notice to proceed date?

Reference Amendment 0001, Exhibit R - CDRLS PM, 
PM-22 updated to read draft due "15 days after notice to 
proceed date" 12/13/2013

68

Exhibit S, CDRLs SS, SS-02 SS-02 states date of first submission as "30 days after 
contract award." Could the Government please confirm this is 
30 days after contract award and not after contract start, while 
also clarifying the frequency is weekly?

Reference Amendment 0001, Exhibit S - CDRLS SS, SS-
02 updated to read "30 days after notice to proceed" 12/13/2013

69

Exhibit S, CDRLs SS, SS-03 SS-03 states date of first submission as "30 days after 
contract award." Could the Government please confirm this is 
30 days after contract award and not after contract start?

Reference Amendment 0001, Exhibit S - CDRLS SS, SS-
03 updated to read "30 days after notice to proceed" 12/13/2013

70

Exhibit S, CDRLs SS, SS-04 SS-04 states date of first submission as "30 days after 
contract award." Could the Government please confirm this is 
30 days after contract award and not after contract start?

Reference Amendment 0001, Exhibit S - CDRLS SS, SS-
04 updated to read "30 days after notice to proceed" 12/13/2013



Question # RFP Reference Question Response Date Posted 

71

W52P1J12R0116_0000, pg #59, 
L.5.4.2.7.5(a) 

Will the Government provide guidance as to which CBAs 
cover which portions of the contract.  This information is 
necessary to verify compliance with the CBA requirements.

Reference Amendment 0001, Section A, CBA 
Clarification 12/13/2013

72

SF30, W52P1J-12-R-0116, 
Amendment 1, Page 15, 
Paragraph L.5.4.2.7.5 (a) Direct 
Labor Rates

For evaluation purposes only, Offerors shall assume a 3% 
escalation rate for proposed personnel and/or proposed 
categories of labor for each option year that is not covered by 
an applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA). Are 
you requiring offerors to escalate their direct labor rates by 3% 
for each option not covered by an applicable CBA?  If not, 
please clarify "Offerors shall assume a 3% escalation rate."  If 
Offerors are required to submit a 3% escalation, how is 
52.222-43 to be interpreted as far as warranting that our 
proposal does not include contingencies for increased costs?   

Offerors are required to provide the basis of costs 
proposed including the required information in Section L, 
Paragraphs L5.4.2.3, L.5.4.2.7.5 (a) and L.5.4.2.7.5 (b).  
For evaluation purposes, Offerors are to assume and 
propose a 3% direct labor and fringe escalation rate for 
all CBA labor categories where the CBA has expired.  
For instance, if the applicable CBA is valid through 2015, 
then Offerors are to utilize a 3% direct labor and fringe 
escalation rate for outyears not covered by the CBA.  
The 3% escalation rate here only applies to labor 
categories and fringe benefits specifically identified in the 
CBA.  For labor categories and fringe benefits not 
specifically identified in the CBA, Offerors are to provide 
supporting documentation for their direct and indirect 
labor rates proposed.  The Government is not using a 
3% escalation rate for evaluation purposes for CBA labor 
categories or fringe/overhead costs not specifically 
identified in the CBA.    The Government is utilizing the 
3% escalation for evaluation purposes only. 12/24/2013
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SF30, W52P1J-12-R-0116, 
Amendment 1, Page 15, 
Paragraph L.5.4.2.7.5 (b) 
Indirect Expense Rates

For evaluation purposes only, Offerors shall assume a 3% 
escalation rate for Fringe Benefit
Rates for each option year that is not covered by an 
applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement 
(CBA). Are you requiring offerors to escalate their fringe 
benefit rates by 3% for each option not covered by an 
applicable CBA?  If not, please clarify "Offerors shall assume 
a 3% escalation rate."  If Offerors are required to submit a 3% 
escalation, how is 52.222-43 to be interpreted as far as 
warranting that our proposal does not include contingencies 
for increasd costs?   

Offerors are required to provide the basis of costs 
proposed including the required information in Section L, 
Paragraphs L5.4.2.3, L.5.4.2.7.5 (a) and L.5.4.2.7.5 (b).  
For evaluation purposes, Offerors are to assume and 
propose a 3% direct labor and fringe escalation rate for 
all CBA labor categories where the CBA has expired.  
For instance, if the applicable CBA is valid through 2015, 
then Offerors are to utilize a 3% direct labor and fringe 
escalation rate for outyears not covered by the CBA.  
The 3% escalation rate here only applies to labor 
categories and fringe benefits specifically identified in the 
CBA.  For labor categories and fringe benefits not 
specifically identified in the CBA, Offerors are to provide 
supporting documentation for their direct and indirect 
labor rates proposed.  The Government is not using a 
3% escalation rate for evaluation purposes for CBA labor 
categories or fringe/overhead costs not specifically 
identified in the CBA.   The Government is utilizing the 
3% escalation for evaluation purposes only. 12/24/2013

74

Amendment 0001 Amendment 0001 extends the due date for receipt of 
proposals to 20 Decmber 2013. Currently, three small 
buisiness EAGLE submissions are due 20 Dec. Having three 
proposals due at once stretches small businees resources. In 
addition, we are concerned that the submittal process through 
ASFI may be difficult with so many companies submitting 
multiple proposals on the same day. Would the Government 
consider extending FT Irwin until January?

Reference Amendment 0002, which extends the due 
date for receipt of proposals 12/24/2013

75

General Given the potential changes to the pricing and cost volumes 
based on the answers to questions would the Government 
consider providing an extention to Jan 14 to allow primes to 
get their new pricing elements together?

Reference Amendment 0002, which extends the due 
date for receipt of proposals 12/24/2013
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Amendment 001: Ft. Irwin 
Industry Questions 12 Dec., 
Question # 30. 

The answer to question #30 appears to be cutoff.  Can you 
please issue the entire answer? Reference the Question & Answers, Dated 24 December 

2013, that includes full text of Question 30 response 12/24/2013

77

Ft. Irwin Industry Questions 12 
Dec - Question 1

In response to Question 1 of the Ft. Irwin Industry Questions 
12Dec, the Government provided 1856 as productive hours in 
accordance with the CBA (Attachment_0008-
FICA_LSSC_CBA).  However, the CBA (Attachment_0008-
FICA_LSSC_CBA), requires Holiday, Vacation, and Paid 
Personal Leave.   Based on the numbers provided for those 
leave categories within the CBA (Attachment_0008-
FICA_LSSC_CBA), there is a maximum of 1832 productive 
hours equaling 1 FTE.  Question:  Will the Government clarify 
or resolve this descrepancy?

Reference Question # 1 and #10 posted 13 December 
2013, which have been changed to remove the 
sentence, "The hours proposed must meet or exceed 
what is required by the CBA, which is 1856."  Offerors 
are to idenitfy their proposed number of Productive hours 
for each CBA and SCA Labor categories proposed in 
accordance with Sections L.5.2.1.4 through 
L.5.2.1.4(iii)(d) of the RFP.   Offerors are to base their 
productive hours in accordance with the CBA and SCA 
requirements.   12/24/2013

78

Amendment 001: Ft. Irwin 
Industry Questions 12 Dec., 
Question # 31. 

Are the vehicles used to pickup from local vendors 
government supplied vehicles?  If not, is the contractor 
provided vehicle part of the ODC costs provided by the 
government?

No, vehicles are not government supplied.  Please refer 
to Question # 22 posted on 13 December 2013 in 
regards to ODC costs. 12/24/2013
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